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Governments or by the Central Gov-
ernment, river navigation requires a
good deal of improvement. Nobody
has any control over these rivers. We
have got all sorts of defective boats
and the pessengers are subject to a
great deal of danger. Therefore, it is
desirable that the Ministry takes
charge of all the boats—] mean boat
trafic—in Godavari Krishna, Brahma-
putra and Gangs; and let it become a
central subject

There is no time and I conclude; I
thank you for the time given.

My. Deputy-Speaker: Now, we will
take up the next item.

Shri Raghunath Singh: Sir, may
begin now.

Mr Deputy-Speaker: We have al-
ready trespassed; we have taken four
minutes.

17'84 hrs,

MOTION RE: CHINAKURI COL-
LIERY DISASTER

Mr Deputy-Speaker: Now, we take
up the next item, the motion that 1s
to be made by Shrimati Renu Chakra-
vartty. But, before we take #t up, I
would like to know from the House
what time it would like to suggest
because no time has been alloted for
this.

Several Hon. Members rose—

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I should sit
down if all the Members stand.

Normally, we sit up to six o'clock;
today we may extend it to 6.30.

sAalm Member: At least 2} hours,
ir.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I have no
objection. If the hon. Members desire
o sit up til] 12 o'clock I would not
have any objection. Normally, we
would not have quorum after six, |
Suppose.

18 LSD-8,
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An Hom. Member: One hour will
do.

The Minister of Parliamentary
Affalrs (Shri Satya Narayan Sinha):
Of course, the Mover, the hon. lady
Member is going to say what she has
to say. On this side, the Minister will
reply.f As you yourself have suggest-
ed, I am afraid, after six o'clock, it
will be difficult to keep quorum.
Therefore, it will not look nice if, when
the Minister is replying or, perhaps
when the Mover is having her last
reply, there is no quorum. There-
fore, let us have half an hour for the
Mover and half an hour for the Min-
ister. Others will be listeners.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: 1 suppose 2»
hour and a half should suffice.

Some Hon, Members: Two hours.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Let us see.
Each hon. Member shall have to be
content with ten minutes except the
hon. Mover who may have twenty
minutes.

Shrimatt Renu Chakravartty
(Basirhat): Sir, I beg to move:

“That this House takes note of
the Report of Inquiry into the
Chinakuri Colliery Disaster, laid
on the Table of the House on the
16th February, 1959." -~

It is unfortunate that we are having
to hurry over a discussion of such an
important accident. It is one of the
worst disasters in colliery history and
it actually led to the death of hundreds.
It is one of the biggest coal mines in
India and belongs to the Bengal Coal
Company. It is so big that it pro-
duces more than the entire  State
sector coal and every year its output
is increasing. It is so important that
during the debate on the Demands for

* the Ministry of Steel, Mines and Fuel,

Sardar Swaran Singh has stated that
due to the disaster at Chinakuri they
could not attain the targets set for coal
production. He even made that etate-
ment. Therefore, it is clear that it s
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a very important enquiry that
instituted. I hope the éntire House
was concerned with it on the 25th
of February, 1958 and the
hon. Minister had stateq that
he would have a full dress
discussion once the report was avail-
able. It is this very same group of
colljerics—The Bengal Coal Co. —in
19868 at Goidhi had an equally big
disaster and about 209 workers were
killed. In the findings of the enquiry
at that time it was stated that this very
group of management had supress-
ed the full names of the dead
and the court of Enquiry
finally to gave the names in
tull they had to add the names of
various santhas women workers whose
names were found later on. A stric-
ture was passed that the registers and
records were not kept properly. Now,
history is repeated again in the case
of Chinakuri It is very surprising
that although there have been four
major coal mine disasters since Inde-
pendence and in all of them we find
that at least the courts of enquiry
have given the number of dead and
injured and also the lists of the dead,
in the case of this accident at China-
kuri, nothing of that type is done.
The whole thing i left vague. It
says that the minimum may be this,
the maximum may be this and then
a ﬂgure is arrived at this way. The
whole enquiry report deals with lhis
very important question in this way
where hundreds of our mine workers
were killed.

In the very short span of time al-
Jowed to me I want to say that we feel
very perturbed. We have never
challenged the findings of the courts
of enquiry as it is a serious thing. Now
we do it because we find that th»
results of the enquiry report are such
that if we allow it and if the Govern-
ment accepts this, then in the future
there will be no hope for the mine
workers. It will mean that we shall
allow thogse who are guilty to go un-
punished. We shall have to conclus-
ions which cannot be accepted by any
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was tenets of jurisprudence. That is

why, with a full sepse of respongi-
bility and knowing that we are chal-
lenging certain findings of the Judge,
we place before this House certaia

"very important facta.

Not only that. We have also been
very perturbed to‘'find the way in
which the Department of Mines has
behaved. The department is the re-
pository of the interests of the
workers, on behalf of the Govern-
ment and on behalf of the nation.
What is it that we find? The inspec-
torate of this department did not go.
down the mine at any time alter the
explosion right up to the time of the
sealing of the mine. By way of an
interruption we were told by the
Oeputy Minister that there was fire
ranging inside. Actually he also said
something about water, that there was
water. Water was there after water
has been poured in. But normally,
between the time of explosion and the
time of the sealing, we find rescue
parties and teams going down and we
find the management going down. Al
though we have found our inspector-
ate siaff there at the pithead, although
we have found the Chiaf Inspector of
Mines and the Deputy Chief Inspector
of Mines going there, none of them
went down. Yet, the Amlabad En-
Quiry says that a special investigation
team should go down there and should
see things underground so that noth-
ing is tampered with. In this case we
allow the management full scope to
g0 ahead and do whatever they want
without any interference on the part
of the Department of Mines.

‘Then, we were absolutely surprised
to see that when the workers re-
presentptives were demanding that
the Chitf Inspector of Mines and the
Deputy Chief Inspector of Mines
should be allowed to be examined, it
is stated by the Judge himself and
also by the Council on behalf of the
owners that at no time since the start
of the Chinakuri Mines did the Chief
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& a fantastic situation. Even then
this gentieman gives a good chit to
the Bengal Coal Company. He
says that it is one of the finest mines,
—it has appeared in the Statesman—
after he has been appointed an assessor
in this enquiry.

Thirdly, we find in the course of the
evidence that the Regional Inspector
of Mines sdys that he sent to the Chief
Inspector of Mines various notes and
files regarding violations of safety
rules -and other mining rules but he
never got any reply and he does not
know what happened. It is charged
that the Department of Mines did not
carry out proper preliminary investi-
gation on the plea that it stopped it
as soon as the Court of Enquiry was
instituted. But we find in the report
that the Department submitted to
the court a note on finding of its
enquiry—it was accepted as
an Exhibit—it is said that they went on
examining witnesses, almost all of
them workers, till about the 24th of
April when the enquiry work had
already started. They were examined
in the presence of the management,
and except for three under wmanagers
and one assistant manager no officers
of the management were examined.
Therefore, it was a one-sided examin-
ation. That also, the workers were
examined in the presence of ‘he
management—leading questions were
asked and in fright the leading quest-
ions were answered.

Another thing is, in the statement
filed by the Chief Inspector of Mines
it is written that he had examined the
agent and managess, but when the
manager was examined it was found
that neither the manager nor the
Deputy Chief Mining Engineer was
examined, and both of them declared
that they had never been examined.
These are all facts, but none of these
is really found i the court’s findings.
It is amazing that these are not there.
These things should have found &
place. These are direct violations of
duties enjoined upon the Department
of Mines by the laws laid down by
Parliement.
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Again, sealing of mines was done
and recovery operations were dis-
continued * by the department. This
is a very serious thing, because it is
only when there is absolutely no
possibility of saving anybody else
that the mines are sealed. This de-
cision was taken by the Department
of Mines, by the Chief Inspector of
Mines on the ground that the last
leader of the rescue team, Shri
Krishnan came and said that he saw
a fire raging and there was nobody
else alive. But in the evidence Shri
Krishnan says that he never said 3o,
and the records prove that. This is
also a very serious thing.

The most amazing of all is, this de-
partment gives no figures of the dead.
I was looking at the Amlabad Report.
There, on behalf of the Department of
Mines, the results of the investigation
are given as to the number of persons
dead and the number of persons in-
jured. In this report we find that
the Department gives no figures of

"dead or injured. Compared to other

reports, they do not say anything here,
the number of persons in the attend-
ance register, the number missing and
figures like that. Could criminal ne-
gligence towards care of workers go
further? We have entrusted such an
important task on the Department of
Mines. That s why on another occas-
ion I said that it is very necessary to
go thoroughly into the working of the
Department of Mines, especially the
Chief Inspector of Mines. I have noth-
ing personally against the Chief In-
spector. I have never set my eyes on
him. I believe he is very angry with
me. He has gone on telling people
things about me—personal things. I
do not know where from he has got
those things. I have nothing personal-
ly agamst him. But for a number of
years complaints have been coming to
us. If these records which are im-
portant on the basis of the Enquiry
are true, then it is a very serious
offence. I would also like to eay one
thing. The Deputy Minister may
say, “I hope these charges will never
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be repeated again”. I looked into the
Mines Act itself. In the Mines Act, it
is stated that the Chief Inspector of
Mines should not be directly or in-
directly interested in any person or
relation employed in any mining area,
But I have a long list which would
show that his brothers, brother-in-law,
ete., are employed in the mining con-
cerns  Or near mining areas. His
brother is the general manager
of the Raniganj Coal Association. His
brother-in-law is a welfare officer in
Chinakuri. One of his brothers is an
agent of Shaw-wallace Collieries
A very large number of his
relations are in the mining areas. One
may say that if one person is em-
ployed and who happens to be his re-
lation, it is just coincidence, but if such
& large number of persons, his sons,
brothers, etc., are associated with
mining interestes, then it does lead to
certain conclusions which are not
very good.

On the question of violations, the
matter is very very important. I
want the House to consider it from
the point of view of the working class
and the miners, because each one of
these violations are very very serious.
We have given much thought, and this
Parliament has given much thought
to the welfare of the workers and in
the matter of setting up the safety
rules. This is one of the type of mines
where there is gas. This is a gassy
mine and the need for care is ex-
treme. As a matter of fact, as I was
reading through the report, I find
the judge himself saying that the
Dishergarh coal dust—it is admitted
by the court—is highly inflammable
and if coal dust rises there and if there
is the slightest carelessness and the
slightest violation of the safety rules,
the explosion would be terrific. To
keep down the dust, the Mines Act
enjoins every mine to have a  stone
dusting scheme whereby the coal
dust is brought down and the atmos-
phere is cleared. They must have
a plan and a scheme. They failed to
take care of it.
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In para. 161 the courts report ad-
mits that stone-dusting in mines does
not appear to have been adequate to
meet the regulations. In para 70, the
court admits that wherever there was
an excess of gas, it was due to de-
fective ventilation and not to any
extraordinary source of supply of gas.
It says that proper steps were not
always taken in time to dilute the gus
sufficiently. All this has been admit-
ted by the court.

Then again, what has happened?
The judge eays that the reason is that
the miners are illiterate, The ex-
plosives are taken away because the
miners are illiterate. The judge says:
-_

“The state of the explosive re-
@sters is of course partly to be
explained by the fact that the
shot-firers, to whom explosives
are issued, are mostly illiterate.”

I cannot go into all the details, with-
in the time of 20 minutes. But & is
said that the explosive registers were
kept badly. The magazine man who
is jin charge of the maga-
zine is engaged all 24 hours
to do other jobs. Yet, after
saying that these things were
wrong, the court says that they are
partly due to the fact that the workers
were illiterate. He does not say
anything more.

Then again, there is no occasion for
any drastic action, it is said, because
the management rectified as prompt-
ly as possible the defects. Why
should there be the defects? The
question of rectifying or not is quite
another matter. If you play with the
lives of the people, if there is a defect,
then certainly it is violation of the
law. This amazing-statement is made
by the court itself.

The most amazing and, criminel
thing is that they have no attendance
registers. The attendance register i¢
not a lamp register, The court says
that attepdnnce registers are not there



p43k Mobion re:

in this pit, that is, Chinakuri I and II
There is an incline. there. It is an-
other mine. According to the Mines
Act, each mine has to have its own
separate register. What has happened
every time? They say that Gorakhpur
labour was there. 1 would not like
to go into that. But I might say that
Gorakhpur labour js labour recruit-
ed from the various sections of the
labour population from Gorakhpur.
They have brought altogether, almost
in a slave labour camp more or less,
the labour from Dhanbad and then
from Dhanbad. From Dhanbad, they
are taken according to the require-
ments of the area. I am sure other
Members interested in labour will
agree with me that this inhuman
practice of Gorakhpuri labour must
be scrapped. The Deputy Minister
might say, if the figures are higher,
why don’t they come for compensation?
I# anybody knows what Gorakhpuri
labour is, they will realise how it Is
almost next to impossible for women
and children lving far away in the
villages to come and claim compen-
sation. That is another point. Let us
decide whether this court of enquiry
has arrived at the truth.

It is clearly known that there were
no attendance registers. It is sald
that in the absence of attendance re-
gisters, the lamp registers may be re-
garded as attendance registers. I
was going into the report and I found
that it has been given to the court of
- enquiry by this unknown inspector,
who was asked after six months ¢to
verify the records of the dead given

You will ind from the report that
the lamp registers were completely—I
to use the word ‘lalse’”

:
]
¥
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the lamp registers were not kept
correctly.

In para 22 of the report, it is stated -
by the court that exact figures avau-
able for use on 19th February when
the explosion took place does not
appear from any of the documents. It
i1s on the basis of the lamp register
figures that the court comes to the con-
clusion about the number of the dead.
According to the regulations, miners
who are supposed to do short-firing in
a gas mine are to take two safety
lamps. But according to the lamp
register, the mining sardars who had to
test for gas during inspection and when
shot-firing, were not provided with
safety lamps. But after dewstering,
two safety lamps were shown in the
management’s report, So, it is very
clear that in order to identify the
number of the dead, the lamp regis-
ters cannot be accepted.

Then, the man-power distribution
plan is also to be submitted, accord-
ing to the law. But we find that the
man-power distribution plans sub-
mitted by the management were prov-
ed to be wrong. If we go into the
details of it, you will find that the
feeling which comes out that this
‘was also manipulated in the course of
cross-examination and after the 19th,
it was produced. So, these points raise
serious suspicions in our minds. In
spite of all these grossest violations,
the court has nothing to say and re-
fuses to fix any responsibility.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The. hon.
Member’s time is up.

Shrimati Renn  Chakravarity:
have just finished one section.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: How many
sections are there? If one section it-
self takes 20 minutes, then it may take
1 or 1} houra.

Shrimati Renu Chakravarity: It is
a very important matter, s0 many
people being killed and so on. Com-
ing to the question of casualty itself,
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in spite of these violations—I would
like to stress on the violations part
of it, because it is a very important
thing for the lives of our miners—all
the time, the attempt is actually made
to absolve the mines department as
well as the management.

In page 54 of the report, it is very
clearly stated that there was negli-
gence on the part of management. Re-
garding the numbers of the dead about
which there has been so much differ-
ence of opinion, according to the
manager, 310 went down in the first
shift. They also say in the course of
the cross-examination that there is
very little fluctuation between the
first and second shifts. We start with
that. The man-power distribution
given by the management is 176. The
temporary Manager, Shri Vasudeva,
says that this was prepared in the
second shift on the 19th. Now para.
4 of the owner's statement says that
176 persons are alleged to have lost
their lives—164 with skulls, 6 with-
out skulls, 4 after rescue. One was
taken after death also. Now when
the registers were before the court,
the court itself was completely con-
fused and was unable to make out the
figures. Then what does he do? He
does something which even to a person
who is not a lawyer sounds very
fantastic. The court asks the Mines
Department, atter everything was
over, after the evidence is closed on
the 12th of August, to make verifica-
tion. And no one knows the date of
the request. Suddenly the court
gives a verified report in the matter
by an inspector. When was it carried
out? Who carried it out? Where was
it carried out? Why the workers re-
presentatives were not allowed to go
to the spot? Nothing i3 said. It is
something unheard of. Sudently on
a particular day the court tells the
:rhul that this is what has bappen-

T now come o what is writter” in
Appendix II, showing the distribution
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of dead bodies. Here the
bodies shown is 178 exclud-
ing 5 died on the surface;

that is, 183 in all. According to the
management, not according to the
Union as stated by the Deputy Minis-
ter, because it is submitted by the
management of the Bengal Coal Com-
pany, one of the biggest and most
powerful of capitalists in the country,
out of 178, 154 are with skulls, 24
without skulls, 5 died on the surface.
Then the management in their note
of the 28th of August adds another 23
dead, making a total of 206. Then
there may be some more dead bodies
under the debris. There may be other
dead bodics consumed by fire. That
is also there. So, it comes to 208 plus
all this. That s a question mark, a
big question mark. Let us know the
full details in this matter according to
the register. I have taken the trouble
of sitting down and addimg up. If you
add what is there it comes, according
to me—it may be I am wrong in add-
ing one or two by mistake—to 192
It we add 5 died on the surface, it
comes to 197 plus those who are under
debris, plus those who may be con-
sumed by fire. How did the court
come to the conclusion that it may
be a minimum of 115 and a maximum
of 1786? According to the manage-
ment it may be somewhere near 155.
This is something which we cannot ac-
cept on the basis of what is there
before us. Then. no names of the dead
are given. I feel that thig isa very -
unjust way of conducting an inquiry.

One last point and I am done. There
is another fantastic thing that has
been done by this court. Suddently we
find in the course of the judgment he
says: 1 asked for post-mortem re-
ports from the hospital. Now, these
post-mortem reports were never pro-
duced as exhibits and so no CTosS~
examination could be made about
those figures. How do we verify that
actually all the dead bodies were
brought and some were not
surreptitiously dispesed? The Court
~1st says that 115 is the minimum and
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176 is the maximum That 18 why
that we say that the finding
of the court on this point is not accept.
able. Then again, when the bodies
were taken away, why was 1t done in
the night? That 13 why a suspicion
has been aroused in the minds of the
workers that there is something wrong
somewhere. Then, the workers
have not been allowed to go down,
though people belonging to the
management and colliery owners
and others were allowed to go
in, and this 1s in spite of the workers
making repeated requests to that
effect.

Then there 1s another fundamental
fallure of jurigprudence when the
Court disbelieves the report of the
Court’s Neutral Scientific observer
about the 3rd shot firer Shot fire
18 a very important question m gassy
mines Three shot fires were there,
Two shot fires are accounted for but
one 15 not. The neutral observer says
that he found & smashed cap and 1t
shows that here shot firing has taken
place The management says, “No,
we did not find any smashed cap”. In
spite of the fact that they were actual-
ly cross-examining the neutral
adwviser, none of them asked him this
question. Then we find that the evi-
dence closes on the 12th August. The
management 18 cross-examined on the
7th August The Union start argu-
ments between the 25th and the 28th
August They make repeated
charges of suppression of the fire
exploder The Court adjourns on the
20th August to the 2nd September
After the workers’ representatives
leave the management submits a note
that the missing exploder has been
found in another area and the Court
says that Rosser found it, that the
management found it on the 27th July.

Therefore, my conclusions are that
there has been a gross violation of
justice according to all standards of
jurisprudence and the Government
should reject the report. This is a
negative demand. The positive de-
mand is that there should be a re-
enquiry, the Mines Department should
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be thoroughly overhauled, the Chief
Im!‘,ctor of Mines should be dismissed
and * the management should be
Severely punished There is a full
case for the nationalisation of Bengal
Coal Company.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Motion moved;

“That this House takes note of
the Report of Inquiry into the
Chinakur1 Colliery Disaster, laid
on the Table of the House on the
14th February, 1959”

There 1s an amendment also to this.

8Shri Vajpayee (Balrampur): Sir, I
beg to move

‘That at the end of the motion,
the following be added, namely: —

“and recommends that a fresh
+ enqury be held mto the whole
matter ”

" Freaqet wEYE, Hwd [y vt &
&g § 44 oF quvea ofeu frar §
Forar gy 7g s Y € § F fagdr
® B 8 @ § o frene gur
FHAY R ¥ S T A | O I
e #v v o= & AR v a7
& W ¥ qad % arz Gar W e
& % & g w QU o W w
Wawr af fear & 1 x9 e § feae
Wi quR N ¥ g sy @3
W graew § A€ o fafesy e W2
TN N 3B g g
T geree 3w wET v @ R o
TR s afe & § ¥ aw
fp Qg ¥ surer 7 § WK ag e
€ arf @ v W O iR o anferdy
® fry deg W wrae Ao g 0,
At g deay 1 1§ Faee @ T
O o g S o g & T @
g 1 Wt fanerragds T vy awr 21
fo oAy —

“The exact figure of lamps that

Were available for use on Febru.
&ry 19, when the explosion took
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place, does not appear in any of
the documents™

g W& wr folg § 1 e et ag R

wX foar v @ 7y e § o gm
wfey o o gr w o & o
T o aR . L L

ot wo Qo (wrryy) : @
wifodt vt |

ot avededt : 39 § fead ofifey
iR g § @ 18 w1 W A v
o iNIFI N wan
Nee e b 11
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ot wgr v § fie s SR
A vg arw ¥y s fie § s qgelt
qreft & 300 WHE By wTR ¥ Fold TR
wx we qg & fin oy arg ot ofert &
v 7 qg dwar @ #F v af awfw
@ ar A e ey war & e
forw Faw Y F s § gl o
T igU R g
A o Iw o § ow & o
w safiwr o W6 o g ff § WX
i safier R ¥ WY o W aRFs-
Yo 3w gkt & 0w I O T W
7€ 3 1 qiw TR kA g R wr ok
{1 W g & T e g A o™
g ¥

wakTwr T AN e
e vt w7 qfeda § 99 o i agy
A WP F wweqr F Fgg Frever
Ty 41 WX 99 3 W9 W F X
%Y wgr ¥ fir freiz o o0 oY s R
gheT ¥ O ST ag® kP g
Wr ara A far o qg Y € ¥
gz § x@ e Y @wre fsay ar fis
o for & s agn dw A gt g
o I F N g wT $T@ I
Tag wW A ¥ e W e w
WRYIFTCA® T R | v g Ty
fis ow arelt & 7Ry 3 o W wE
& e < faar, s Y fivar oY e
W wrr ¥ wwewwat @ iR qEd
ey ¥ g Sy vt ot ? e }
fir PER gl & ey oy e fY
# v 8 W vl R o
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arer gt oY wvar fe R el e qg AT %Y o oz ag At dw ¢, fis
oY wam & wg wyr aw oy § o dw- %9 X WY &Y €Y e ¥ fad o
¥z ¥ vu wr wi e wff wi yeiwee fague o wifgd 1 ofiem W
ax-agt g DA A aww wf at o oY fed¥E § 9% W aroya gy i oror ey
T & gt qrelt & wagd o ww v IRt amr 1wy fe
¥ fod W o my ? T A1 Y 2w §, dfowr suragifon

wgt ww g F wTON & T wfe 7o § owdr Y § 1 st
§ o uw el fedt ffee & qwar v ¥ g A g #
afcormr o T T § 1 dram DRy % T w7

TR W TR
feitd & gy dt Wi ¢ | e ag daw
VY 7 97 29 A 97 A I w7 IAE
wtfaex fivg & FITY | WNE F wEr
% fs —

It 13 clear that when the loco was
taken underground without the flame
trap on the air inletside somebody
somewhere was at fault and this has
cost the owners 30 much in men and

money.

“Somecne somewhere was at
tault”.

W OW W owaew § 7 owg e
fiezTaT T 4T XW AT Wy iy W &
fadt To e § fad soerlt oA
g e o X gy A femr ot <@
were oY weT o1 sav fear § o A &
wafir Freerdt § e oY =safy W o ag
Wt Rz W O TR AT, I9 N
wfy €t fis e wre eveft & safwy
aT N | TR O e W o
safier off v, A g o w &
o v § AR R AgR o e
AT BT WX, SeF1 e g aw wT
vt o wnit w1y WY, oforw s ¥
TR T AR A A B T A
T TR kR, TR
W e W @ & fad o Iue-
ot §, <@ & fnle xw ¥ ¥ v
L

aygt ow fraw Ay & 9o v wr
T §, o Sew & www wwpd |
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Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The motion
and the amendments are before the
House. Now, Dr. Melkote.

Mr. Melkote (Raichur): Mr. Deputy-
Speaker, Sir, workers underground
have to be protected by the manage-
ment and towards the protection of
them, Government have to se¢ that
the laws that are enacted are enforce-
ed strictly. Workers underground
often get damaged. They are trapped.
They get damaged due to causes
which take place underground. This
is a very serious matter. Workers get
dispirited and disheartened, and it is
a dastardly act on the part of any
management not to give them protec-
tion, under such conditions. It is said
that laws have been tightened up. This
disaster has occurred after two or
three such incidents which have occur-
red before. The loss of life goes up to
175 or thereabouts.

Sir, I have had occasion to deal with
some of the affairs of these mines. To
‘my knowledge, one such incident oc-
curred in the present Mysore State
three or four years back. If I remem-
ber correctly, that was also a British-
managed mine. The Government of
India took such strict and vigilant
measures that for a period of three
or four year they ‘harassed’ the
management. That is the word that
the management used. In the wake
of this happening and the vigilance of
the Government of India as proved by
the above incident, it would be wrong
to say that in 1948 they were less
vigilant than before. That is the
way in which the Government
of India and the Mines Depart-
ment have gone about their work, and
they look to it with vigilance and with
a strict eye, In the wake of this,
there are two things. One is that here
are the Government and the Mines
Department who are very vigilant
about the interests of the workers and
Save done everything to protect their
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lives, and I am sure the Government
of India and everyone of us and
everyong interested in labour wﬂlhlvo
their sympathy going out to everyone
that has lost his life in the mines and
to the relatives who had to suffer
thereby. And to the extent that com-
pensation and other things have got to
be given, they have to be given, and
every act of sympathy shown to the
bereaved. But that is not the aspect
which is being discussed here..

What is being discussed to-day is the
question of the type of inquiry that
took place after the incident. Here
was a judge consisting of assessors,
with some scientific personnel also to
support them. If one reads through
the whole inquiry, one could claim
that throughout the report and in
every page of it, the judge has been
meticulous in his observations. He
has pointed out throughout that this
is a matter where scientific investiga-
tion and research and assessment is
necessary. I am sorry 1 am not one
of those who could do it, and I can-
not, therefore, judge this properly.
But here is the assessment from the
different witnesses and workers. And
gleaning through these things, I can
come to certain conclusions. I do not
know whether if another inquiry is to
be held, anybody else could do better
than this, because, after all, it is a
judicial judgment. Here is a judge of
a High Court who has been deputed
to go into the matter, with assessors
properly nominated, and they have
gone on with the inquiry for several
months, going into every detail. And
what is being said here is that the
judicial inquiry was not perfect, that
the witnesses that were brought for-
ward were not the right type of peo-
ple, that the Mines Management has
not adduced facts here and s0 on and
so forth. do not know, after going
through the whole proceedings here,
whether what is being said is correct.
It is only to that extent that I am
repeating the whole thing, If there
was any fault, I would be one of the
first to charge Government and the
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mines management and ask for an
inquiry. But I have gone through the
whole report, and 1 feel that 1t is very
difficult for anybody to believe that
such a thing has happened.

Now, one of the main contentions is
that no attendance register was kept
‘Then, it has been said, that in the inlet
and outlet the ventilation was not pro-
per, that some explosmion toock place,
that shot firing has taken place, and
there 1s evidence to prove that in that
particular place 1t had not taken place
and 8o on All these things have been
said here

If any of these irregularities has
taken place, and it has been shown
by ewvidence that it 1s so, it 1s up to
the Government of India to tske
vigilant and striet action and see that
those people who were responsible for

it are punished

It 1s not & question of a company
owned by the British o» the Indians It
18 a question of loss of life of our
nationals And for what we know, the
whole nation knows that we have been
those who have asked the Bntish to
quit India Will the national govern-
ment be then afraid to take any action
agamnst a British-owned company here”
This 1¢ a thing which 1s ununder-
standable, and how the Opposition
Benches could dare say that we have
conmived with the company which 1s
British-owned 1s unthinkable That 1s
the situation which they are trving to
portray I would repudiate 1t and say
that the interest of the Government of
India lies with our nationals, be they
a British company or any other com-
pany of the world; the Government of
India will take very strong action m
the matter

Apart from other things, actually
speaking, the question is one of loss of
life, whether it is 170 or 310 Ewn-
dence is being produced to say that
it iz 310. At the same time, they say
that no register was kept. It no
;:glhrmkept.hovdoultcme_to
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Shrimati Rena Chakravarity: We
are saying it 18 192 which s the figure
given 1n the report,

Dr. Melkote: Let not the hon. Mem-
ber interrupt, because within the few
minutes that I have, let me speak out
1 did not interrupt the hon. Member
when she was speaking

The whole problem 1s this Whether
1t 18 175 or 210 or 310 1t 1s not a ques-
tion of a register at all Every person
1n this world has some relative or some
friend or somebody, and whether he 1s
traced or untraced, people would come
forward and say, so-and-so, my friend
or my relative, was there, and he has
not been traced so far And for what
we know, the tracing so far has been
only 178 and no more It may be that
bodies have been decapitated, with
bodies throwna on the one side and
heads on the other, the hody was
counted on the one side and the head
on the other These things may occur,
I am not exaggeratmg, and 1 am not
trying to help the Government of
India I have gone through the whole
report, and I have come to the con-
clusion that it 1s very difficult for any-
body to come fo the exact figures

Every person, for what I know, 18
compelled to be insured by these com-
panies It 1s the hife insurance com-
pany that pays for these things The
Government of India would see to it
that compensation is paid Why
should the Government of India say
the figure 1s 170 instead of 300* How
are they interested m the matter®
Why should they help the company to
bring down the figure® These ques-
tions have to be answered, They
should not merely make = charge It
18 very difficult for us to answer these
questions

No relatives have come forward so
far. If there is any relative of a wor-
ker, all sections here would come for-
ward and say that no compensation
has been paid, so-and-so’s relative has
been lost One does not know if there
has been any more than 176 or 180
people who had come forward to make
claims
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(Dr Melkote]

So, I would say that an the face of
i1t the charges levelled by the Opposi-
tion aganst the Government and the
mines management are absolutely
irregular and
such enquary should be allowed, when
there has been a judicial enquiry of
this kind which has gone into it
meticulously and thrashed out the
whole thing.

Shrl Rajendra Singh (Chapra):
When this horrible disaster took place,
we of this House and everybody out-
side felt a sense of horror and sorrow,
and we anxiously wanted to know
what precisely were the causes which
contributed to a disaster of such
magnitude and proportion. It was
very kind of the hon. Labour Minis-
ter to have instituted this court of
inquiry, whose report we anxiously
awaited.

So far as I am concerned, one of
my hon, colleagues was there, and a
very eminent person, a Judge of the
High Court, presided over the court of
inquiry. So, naturally when we got
the report, I went through it with all
the ability I was capable of and the
greatest care and attention that I could
bestow on it. I very candidly confess
that I have been left with the impres-
sion that it is a confounded report, a
fantastic report.

As regards the number of the peo-
ple who have died, I am not very much
particular about that. It may be that
the contention of the Hon. Mover of
the Motion is right, or it may not be
s0 very right as she claims, but the
point which {s of very serious con-
cern is this: whether the management
took all possible care against any
accident or not, whether they adhered
strictly and scrupulously to the rules
framed by the Government so far as
mining operations are concerned, That
is the point ot very great relevance.

When 1 go to the Report, on its
own showing and admission I come to
find that at least at those points, the
management has been found to have
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grossly violated the rules laid down
for safe operation of the mine. The
first thing is that the stone dusting
pilant did not conform to the reguia-
tions 11(6) of 1955 and 123 of 19857.
These provisions were grossly violat-
ed. No stone dusting scheme was sub-
mitted for approval of the Chief
lnspector of Mines, although it was
required to be done under 11(5) of
1958, and the Chief Inspector never
enforced it in this colliery, the deepest
and gassy mine, till the day of the
explosion. This is a very serious
thing, that a management which has
been singled out for a lot of praise as
a very able management, has not
thought it proper to enforce such a
safety measure, which is so vital for
averting or preventing any accident.

Then the ventilation plant proved
false The ventilation plant is very
important if at all we are to save
the mine from any fire breaking out.
But even on their own admission, it is
proved beyond all doubt that the
ventilation plant never was in accord
with the specification or as provided in
the Regulations. Thereby the com-
pany violated clauses 359 and 139 of
the 1957 Regulations.

Similarly, the plan showing normal
distribution of labour on second shift
proved false. This is very important
not merely to the efficient working of
the mine; if unfortunately an accident
takes place, unless we have a complete
register definitely showing the normal
distribution of labour, when salvage
operation takes place or when a rescue
party goes there, they cannot work
efficiently. So when the rescue party
was there; the company did not have
this register. What a criminal negli-
gence in regard to a safety measure?

As regards the electric plan, the Re-
port has clearly shown that it was also
defective, Similarly the Fan Stop-
page book was unreliable and insecu-
rate and the Air Measurement Book
proved faise. The same is the case
with the Exploaive register,
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I can cite a dozen other points
where the management failed to
o_bserve the provisions of the Regula-
tions. But as many of my hon. friends
nave already pdinted them out and as
there is limited time, I do not want to
go into them.

|

1 am now turning to the other as-
pect of the role of the Department
of Mines. The Mover has made
personal allegations against the Chief
Mining Engineer. I do not share her
views. However—] have not known
him; he may be a very efficient man,
a very honest man; I do not question
his honesty~I have contacted the
labour people, people of INTUC, HMS
and AITUC and whomsoever I meet
they all had in one voice a sense of
grievance against the Chief Engineer.
This is a serious thing. His relatives
may be there; his relatives may not
be there. I do not go into that; it is
for the Minister to look into. If there
is a general suspicion, if there is a
general sense of grievance against any
individual, then, the Government
should see that a thorough enquiry is
made and if there is no suspicion as
a result of the enquiry it should be
said from house-top that there was
nothing. But, if there is something,
steps should be taken so that there is
general sense of relief in the country.

18 hrs.

A general feeling has developed in
the country that our legislators are not
honest, that our Parliament is not
honest and our Ministers are not
honest, and that when it comes to a
question of dealing with the officers
they develop a sort of soft attitude to-
wards them. 1 say very honestly to
the House that I have nothing against
this man. But, if any hon, Member
of this House makes an allegation, I
respectfully submit that the hon.
Minister, whose affection for the cause
of the welfare of labour could not be
challenged, should look into it and see
that if there is anything wrong it is
promptly removed.

So far as the question of enforcing
the safety rules is concerned, the role
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of the mining department has been
very distressing. It is clear that a day
or two after the disaster the Chiet
Enginter has praised the managing
company. As far as my information
goes—and I have tried to go deep into
the matter.to find out incontrovertible
facts—since the beginning of this col-
liery, the Chief Engineer has never
been to that mine till the explosion
And, still, when he makes such a tall
claim, naturally, one gets suspicious.
Why is it that the Chiet Engineer
lavishes praise on = company which

has so often been responsible for such
disasters?

Another point is this, When the
rescue operations took place, there
were not sufficient apparatus at the
disposal of the mining department to
rescue the people. Where they needed
more than 24 apparatuses, only 15
were available and the rest were in
the other colliery owned by that com-
pany. So, it shows that the mining
department is not very much parti-
cular about its responsibilities.

When the disaster took place, the
mining department conducted certain
investigations. It is very deplorable
that the findings, the results and the
evidence during the investigation have
not been placed before the Court of
Inquiry. From the report it is evident
that some things which were pertinent
and relevant have been deliberately
kept out from the Court of Enquiry
so that the judgment is vitiated.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: The hon, Mem-
ber must now conclude,

Shri Rajendra Singh: Two minutes
more and I Snish.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker:
minutes have also gone.

Shri Rajendra Singh: I assure you, I
will take only two minutes.. So far
as the enquiry is concerned, it must be
conducted in a manner that there is
no suspicion. There have been allega-
tions against this Court of Enquiry,
that when dewatering was taking place

The two
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[Shri Rajendra Singh]
it did not allow the representatives of
the workers to be witness to it so that
they could be helptul. I do not think
that they gave opportunities even to
some members of the Union. It might
have been a representative from the
INTUC or the AITUC or the HMS. If
anyone of them could have gone there,
there would not have been any sus-
picion. Some evidence was taken
from the workers who had been there

during the time of the disaster. These

evidences were prohibited from being
given before the court of enquiry. But
when the labour evidences were over,
the evidence of the management side
was taken. All these things taken to-
gether just give us a sense of suspicion
about the manner in which this court
of enquiry was held. It is therefore
very right of us to demand this of the
Minister. We are requesting him in the
name of humanity. There is suspicion
about the judgment. Even if that
judgment is correct, even if it is
absolutely true, still ‘there is this sus-
picion. Removing this suspicion would
be in the national interest. Let there
be a re-enquiry by a man in whom
the hon. Minister has faith. I do not
say that he should be a man of my
persuasion or in whom we have faith.

Mr. Deputy-Spesker: The hon. Mem-
ber must conclude now.

Shri Rajendra Singh: Shrimat:
Renu Chakravartty and Shr: Vajpayee
have spoken about the code of labour.
I come from that area and I know the
poverty of the people. Just to fill up
their belly, to cover them, to subsist,
to live these people have surrendered
ull their rights to the cruel manage-
ment. Very often, time and again it
was demanded that the Coal Recruit-
ing Organisation should be abolished.
We talk of socialism and other things,
Is it not proper that we should close
#? I request the hon. Minister to do
away with this organisation at once.

Shri C. R. Pattabhi Raman (Kumba-
Yonam): Mr. Deputy-Speaker, I am
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second to none in claiming that the
utinost precautions should be taken
where the mining indystry is concern-
ed. There could be no difference of
opinion. In this House it is not a party
question at all. 1 have been under a
cogl mine in England. Mining is the
riskiest occupation. People have to

nd six to seven hours a day
thousands of feet down below the earth
jevel. They have to be given the ut-
most protection. It is feally the con-
cern of every person to see to it that
the utmost protection is taken and all
the regulations concerning the mines
are followed. I do not think there
will be any difference of opinion on

1 have no doubt that my friends who
regerred to the enquiry have got in
their mind the relevant section of the
Act under which this court of enquiry
wa? appointed It is under section 24
of the Coal Mines Act that a court of
enduiry is appointed, A person ap-

jnted shall have all the powers of
the civil court under the Code of Civil
procedure That is stated in section
24(2) Now, what is the position? A
Judge of the Calcutta High Court is
appointed. He appoints assessors
Objection is taken to one assessor—the
Chief Inspector of Mines, Mr. Grewal
and he withdraws. One of the asses-
sors is a respected Member of Parlia-
ment, Shri Samanta, who has taken
part in another enquiry and another,
Shyi Whittaker They go through the
entire enquiry.

Now, let us pause for a minute. I
am not merely talking as an advocate
Legal quibbling is not proper in a
national forum like this. But I do say
this, If there is anything offending to
natyral justice during the enquiry it
is ajways possible to go before a suit-
abl¢ court under article 226 and
article 32 of the Constitution to hold
up the enquiry or to strike it down.
You ¢an strike down any offence
against natural justice, any infringe-
ment of the rules of natural justice.
That is not done. During the pendency
of the enquiry you can do that I am
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giving you free legal advice here. You
can stop a pending enquiry if there 18
intringement of natural justice. That
was not done. After the enquiry, after
the judgement it s quite possible
under article 138 of the Constitution
to go to the Supreme Court for special
leave. That has not been done. No
fresh evidence has come up now in
this case.

I find that there wre six findings
against the management by this court
of enquiry. I shall refer to them pre-
sently. So far as the Inspectorate of
Mines is concerned, there is also a refe-
rence to one aspect of the work done
by them; otherwise they have dealt
with the charges against the Inspecto-

rate of Mines and disposed them of.
No fresh evidence is alleged today of
having come to light which will call
for a fresh enquiry.

I am really concerned about
enquiries of the nature. What can
Government do if there is a catastro-
phe—God forbid there should be a
catastrophe. The Government promptly
appoints a court of enquiry. It
appoints a Judge of a High Court to
preside over it. Evidence is let in and
at various stages objections are taken.
Those objections are heard, This en-
quiry goes on from February to about
September or October, 1958. They
have condemned the management. The
report says that the coal dust was not
properly cleaned. Undcr each heading
they have said something-—source of
{gnition, negligence of management
about flooding, ventilation and so on.
in pages between 91 and 126 they have
stated these and given the causes of
ignition. They have also referred to
the rescue operations. All this has
been done, and no fresh evidence has
been placed before the court of en-
quiry. Did they over-rule or reject
anything? If they rejected anything,
did you take objection to it? You can
easily do that. We are not living in
the bad old days. It is now possible
%o strike down a Bad administration so
far as the justice fs concerned. Nothing
has been dome.
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_Now, what will happen? I would
like {5 know which High Court Judge
will take up an enquiry if it is open
{0 ur gitting in Parliament to say that
the enquiry is completely wrong, it is.
_biased, the Judge has not acted pro-’
“perly, and therefore we will have
another enquiry. Do you like that?
Don’t you want a Judge of the High
Court or somebody like that to preside-
Over enquiries?

Shy} Tangamani (Madurai): Can we
not reject the findings?

Shyi{ C. R. Pattabhi Ramsan: You can:
do that. I just told you, You can
appey].

Silyf Tangamanf: Appeal to whom?

Shyi C. R. Pattabhi Raman: I am:
referring to appeal for special leave to-
Supreme Court. The person appointed
to hold the enquiry shall have ail
PoWers of acivil court, Iwill read
article 136. I am much obliged for the
interpyptions, It ishigh time, and I
think jt ijs but appropriate that all
citizans of this country should resort
to Courts as often as possible. I am
not talking as a lawyer.

Mt Deputy-Speaker: Whenever
m" feel aggrieved or even without

Shyj C. R. Pattabhi Raman: I do say,
8ir, you have only to look up to the
Uniteq States Supreme Court reports
to sée how often they go to courts,
how often they break down bad law.
1 wilj read article 138. It says:

‘Nothwnhszandmg anything in
this Chapter, the Supreme Court
may  in its discretion, grant
Spécial leave to appeal !rom any
Juggment, decree, determination,
S€hitence or order in any cause or
matter passed or made by any
€Oyt or tribunal in the territory
of India”

Shei Sadhan Gupta (Calcutta-East):
This i3 a report. A report is neither
8 jufgment nor an order.
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Shrl C. B. Pattabhl Raman' 1 rc-
peat, Sir, that nothing has been done
Supposing some new hght 1s thrown
or fresh evidence 1s brought, I can
understand that Supposing some
fresh evidence i3 brought, I can
understand some sort of rehashing of
the whole finding in the matter of
tightemng the orgamsation, but all the
matters would have found a place in
the proceedings of the court of en-
Quiry I really am not concerned
about them deliberately because it is
in the hands, the capable hands, of
the Mimstry. The whole aspect of
the matter 18 considered by them
1 can understand your saying that the
Inspectorate of Mines should be
tightened up—taking action against
the Inspector if you find any fault—
but to say that some fresh enquiry
should be made because the present
one s hsssed 18 not correct Actual-
ly the suggestion 1s, 1t 1s buassed In
that case, why did you not object to
the appointment of the judge at that
very time?! Why did you not have
it done then? You did object to one
person and he withdrew There-
fore, it is gowng to be a very, very
difficult thing in cases like this, if
you are going to have a rechauffe of
the entire enquiry of any tribunal on
the ground that the findings are
brassed

1 do sympathise with the tragedy
It has taken place unfortunately, and
we must take all possible precaution
to prevent those disasters and see to
it that the safety measures and res-
trictions in regard to sumng are en-
forced strictly

The Deputy Minister of Labour
(8hri Abid All): My senior colleague,
the Muinister of Labour, would reply
I am only concerned with a few re-
marks which were made by the hon
lady Member concerning me First-
ly, about the number of persons . . .

Shed 8. M. Banerjee (Kanpur)- Sir,
this 1s a two-hour discussion, I think
So, there 1s no question of any inter-
vention of the Deputy Mimuster You
gaust give us a chance If he inter-
venes, then the period should be ex-
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tended and the debate should Dde
continued tomorrow

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Shn Abid Al

Shri Abid Ali: With regard o the
number of persons involved in this
accident, I have tried to explain the
pomtion on certain oocmsions, but
again same charge 1s made I may
submut only thuis much with regard
to the plan which the hon Member
has been exhilating again and agamn
I? the plan has been read separately,
then perhaps the figure may be
dufferent As I have saiud on a pre-
vious occasion, 1if sectional plans of
India are made like Kashmir, Punjeb
and Uttar Predesh shown in Plan A,
then Uttar Pradesh Bihar, Bengu!
and Assam gre shown in Plan B, and
Bengal Orissa and Madras in  Plan
C, for a man of ordinary intelligence,
reading these sectional plens, the
population of India will be the same
But to ultra intelligent people, it will
be different as they will take Uttar
Pradesh, of one Plan, viz, Kashmir,
Punjab and Uttar Pradesh to another,
Bengal, Assam and then again Bengal,
Madras, and Orissa. Ultra intelligent
people will read Uttar Pradesh twice
and Bengal twice and thus will add
to the real population of India
Therefore, the confusion has arnsen 1n
the mind of some hon Members
opposite

Shrimati Bemu Chakravarity. Thiw
1s not a sectional plan but the over
all plan

Shri Abid Ali: They believe that s
greater number of persons have died
because they read something there
which 158 shown twice, because when
the sectional plans were made, there
18 one small portion of the bigger
plan shown there 5o, that mignt
have added to this difficulty.

As 1 have saud on a previous occa-
sion, 176 persons died About two o?
three persons, relatives, have nof
come Others have come and takes
away the compensation I requested
the hon. Members on g previous eccs-
sion alsp, “Come on; give me some
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clue 1 am prepared to go round the
varwous areas and to the {farthest
corner of the country and find out
the relations of. the persons besmdes
these 176 which figure has been shown
there,—those persons who have not
come and claimed compensation” It
1s more than one year By this time,
if their point 1s correct, some should
have come and said, “I am a relation
I have not receaved the compensa-
tion I am not getting the news Has
he died®” and so0 on. So, no more
persons are comung, and the figures
which otherwise have also been prov.
ed have been mentioned in the report,
and that should be accepted as cor-
rect, .n the circumstances

With regard to the Inspector of
Mimes, the hon lady Member sad
that 1 have said that he could not go
into the mine because of the fire In
the report also 1t has been mentioned
that the rescue party did go into the
mune after the acadent It 1s true
that I have said that the rescue party
did go inside and did move out 1nside
the mine, at page 264 of the debate
on the 18th February But after they
came out the fire was increasing and
the mune was sealed and water was
put there About the Chief Inspector
of Mines, I am quoting

“In case any such person who
has been 1n the mines department,
(I mean the mines) related to
Shri Grewal, without permission
of Government where permission
was necessary, was appointed, i
these facts are brought to our
notice, certainly we shall took imnto
them ”

This 1s on 18th February No com-
plait has come since then The hon
Member quoted from the Mines Act
that the inspector should not be in-
terested in the mimnes It 1s true
Under , the Representation of the
People Act, restrictions are there, but
it does not mean that because a per-
son is a Member of Parhiament, his
niece, brother or brother-in.law should
be nowhere near any Government
department.

18 (ai) LSD—D
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The hon Member said that the son
of the Chief Inspector of Mines s
employed in the mine That 18 not
correct It 18 absolutely incorrect
Again I would request hon Members,
instead of making these charges here,
kindly write to us the name of the
person and the mine m which he 1s
employed Certainly we do not want
such things to happen If they bring

‘o our notice, action shall be taken
His son is not employed, but two re-
lations are employed, not m this
mrne, but 1n some other mines No-
body will say that once a person is
employed in a particular department,
no relation of his should be anywhere in
the vienmty I have already sub-
mitted that we are prepared to en.
quire into the matter, if any such
person 15 employed without the per-
mussion of Government, certainly
disciplinary action will be taken We
are one with the Members of the
Opposition so far as this matter 1s
concerned But when nobody 1s em
ployed and in spite of assurances,
they go on making unfounded alle-
gations and charges, 1t 1s Jeft to them
They should be somewhere near
realities

Shri §. M. Banerjoee: I do not want
to take the time of the House and I
will be brief About this accident, 1
know the day on which the hon
Mimster made a statement m ths
very House and how bitterly he felt
about this

I have in my possession something
regardmg Mr Grewal 1 have also
not seen him, though I want to see
him some time The Deputy Mins-
ter said his relations are employed in
some other mines His slogan may
be, “Every mme 15 mme” and
naturally he must have engaged some
people there I have no quarrel, let
him make the mining department his
family affair But I am only con-
cerned with this that he has become
a member of the Indian Mine Mana-
gers' Association

1 am surpnsed I have got in my
possession the minutes of the emer-
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[Shri 8. M. Banerjee)
gent general body meeting of the

Indian Mine Managers' Aseociation,

which met on 22nd February, 1889,
Item 8 of the agenda js:

“Consideration of letiters ad-
dressed by our President to Shri
Abid Ali, Deputy Minister of
Labour, Government of India:
President informed that 8hri 8, S
Grewal, the Chief Inspector of
Mines in India has become a
wmember of our Association. The
House expressed their heartful
thanks to Shra Grewal and record-
ed that our Association feels
great ‘pride by  having Shri
Grewal, the most eminent per-
sonality amongst the mining
engineers of India.”

1 do not know how the Chief Inspec-
tor of Mines can become a member of
this association and directly connect
himself with the activities of the
managers of mines.

T have another document. Copy of
letter dated 11th February, 1959
written by the President to Shri Abid
Al, the Deputy Labour Mmister, Gov-
ernment of India, New Delhi. This
Association generally do not wrile
fetters to Shr1 Nanda because they
know that thewr cause can only be
championed by the Deputy Labour
Minister. So, they have written in
this:

“These Regulations were framed
by the Officers of the Department
of Mines who under the threat
of bemng called collaborators in
these ‘Murders’, yielded to the
biackmail and drafted some Regu-
lations which go much further
than even those enacted in the most
advanced countries working under
most dificuit and dangerous con-
ditions. They completely omitted
to realise that we do not have
the conditions, the equipment, the
exchange, the means and the per-
sonnel to work these Regulations.
The New Regulations were un-
fortunately framed far too rigid
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nndlnlomeofthe.ﬁwnimpw\-
ant laws, no discretion was left
to the Chief Iaspector of

[

When the Chiét Inspector of Mines ia
& member of this Association this is
something which we cannot under.
stand. . Moreover, they further say
sometming in the same vein.

Now, who are creating this trouble?
The General Secretary of our Federa-
tion, Shri Kalyan Roy, has brought
out a booklet where he has challeng-
ed the authenticity of this inquiry.
There he has proved by investigation
that some skulls, some bones and
other things were not taken into ac-
count. So, nobody knows the exact
number of men died. In a train ac-
cident when we do not know the
number of people travelling in that
particular train nobody has ever com-
plained that something is wrong jn
counting of the dead bodies. But
here it was something different and
the management of the mines have
purposely withheld information about
the number of people died. I have
never heard of this sort of thing. It
is shameful on the part of the
management of the mines not to
maintain even a register.

Dr. Melkote was referring to the
relatives of those dead. Do you think
that these Britishers who bled our
country white can have any considera-
tion for the weeping widows. Now
the Deputy Minister wants to search
the relatives of these people. Let him
go round the country. Now the cir-
cular further says:

“The atmosphere of distrust and
vilification created by men like
Shri Kalyan Roy and some others
even in the non-communist unions
must be sharply condemned by
the Ministry and suitabla action
taken so that no irresponsible
statements or publications cen fy
about under the protection aof
democracy. Such licences which
undermine the Industry and the
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country must be stopped and
unlesz that is done, mo minmng
man whatsoever will be able to
take any parf{ in any further
deliberations

1 have got copies of these letters.
These are true copies of the letter of
the Association and I can place them
on the Table

Sbhri L. N. Mishra: To whom s that
letter addressed?

Shri 8.M Banerjee: It 18 & letter
written by the Indian Mining Asso-
ction to the respected Shri Abid
Al Jafferbhoy, the Deputy Labour
Minister Bo, when 1 read this
report and the report of Shn Guha
Roy, a semior Judge of the Calcutta
!:yxh Court and the report brought up

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Is it a copy
of the letter or omgnal intercepted?

Shri 8. M Banerjee: Original is
available It can be checked up

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: 1 am asiung
whether this 15 a copy or origmal

Shri 8. M. Banerjee: 1t 13 signed by
the Acting Honorary Secretary, I M.
Samanta

Mr Deputy-Spesker: 1 am enquur-
ing whether 1t 1s the origzina) letter,

Shet 8. M. Banerjee: It is a cyclo-
styled copy And for dsmussing
Shn Grewal I will give thousands nf
copies This iz authentie,

Mr, Deputy-Speaker: It should not
be said so lightly about such highly
placed persons.

Shri 8. M. Baserjee: I know what
dismissal is. 1 was dismussed. That
is why I never recommend anybody’s
diemuggal. So I know what it will
mean, But here in this case

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: He can argue
lus case, but how will this help

mm:.mrr-mmm
myselt, may promoted and
transterved.
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Mr. Deputy-Speaker: He should not
be ridiculed. He could have said that
he should be dismussed or he should
not be promoted Whatever happens,
I am not concerned with um. I omly
enquired whether 1t was the onginal
or the copy The hon Member said
it was cyclostyled copy ‘Then he says
he can produce thousands of copies of
it 1 could not foliow that What
was meant by that’

Shri 8 M. Banerjee: 1 may be ex-
cused.

In the end I would support the
demand of my respected sister, Shri-
mati Renu Chakravartty, that this en-
quiry should be acrapped. Here, my
hon friend was mentioning that there
are other ways of domng 1t The
other day | was heaning the speech of
the hon Home Minuister about the Law
Commission’s Report What did he
mention?” He used all the adjectives
about the Law Commssion’s Report
and I have yet to see that that Report
will be scrapped So, people can ex-
press their opmion about the Law
Commussion’s Report, which was pre-
sided over by the Attorney-General
because it did not suit the taste of
some people But this enquuy has
to be defended Shr1 Grewal has to
be defended. I do not know what the
reasons are, but I am pained at it So,
my demand 18 that please scrap this
report I request the hon Minister
to consider this seriously The ap-
pomntment of another enquury will
restore the confidence of the mine
workers and will create a healthy

atmosphere

Then the second thing is, why not
nationalise these British-owned munes.
India needs money today for the
Second Five Year and the Third Fyve
Year Plans. This wail give money.
The third thuing 15 that if found cor-
rect—there should be an enguiry
sgainst the conduect of Shri Grewsl—
and if necessary he may kindly be
dismissed.

Shri 8 C. Samanta (Tamluk): Sir,
fortunately or unfortunately 1 was
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associated with this Court of En-
quiry.

@hri V. P. Nayar (Quilon): The
latter, Sur

Shri 8. C. Samanta: So, it 1s my
duty to remove the doubts and mus-
apprehensions that .have arisen in the
minds of my hon 1Irnends. First of
all, I request my hon. friends to see as
to what is the duty of the Court. It
was a formal enquiry into the causes
and circumstances attending the acci-
dent This was the duty of the Court
and nothing more. The Judge in the
Report has admitted the inherent
difticulties of the enquiry. I requemt
my hon friends to read those things.
There were difficulties Can you
imagine that there was an explosion
in a mune and from the eastern site
which was ablaze not a single person
could come out> Who will give the
evidence® How the ignmition took
place®* How the explosion took place?
This was the task of the Court of
Enquiry to find out. So, all the diffi-
cuties that have been put before the
House were dealt with by the Court
of Enqury and 1t has been written in
the Report

As regards the number of deaths
end casualties, Heaven knows that
We cannot say for certain that this is
the number of persons who died
How cen we? From the records and
the circumstantial evidence that we
got, we came to the conclusion that
it cannot be less than 115 and 1t can-
not be more than 175. My hon
friends have taken so many docu-
ments As regards the number of
casualties, when they wnll go to deter-
mune it first of all they will dlscuss alt
the documents that were put before
the Court end take up those records
that were immediately put after the
watering and 1mmediately before the
watering I am referring to Appendix
II and II-A to Rosser’s report submit-
ted after de-watering, From that it
will be clear. Total number of bodies
shown in Appendix II 13 158 with 6
additional bodies without skulls
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sl:ﬂmﬂleun Chakravarity: Where
15 1t? .

Shri 8. C. Samanta: It 13 in the re-
port, I have made the report.

in Appendix II-A (9 dip area) are
detailed 21 dead bodies with skulls,
one skull, 1 without skull—all these
are shown in Appendix I-A—with
the exception of 8 bodies without
skulls 1n the lowest part of 9 FEast
Dip. 9 East Dip was the last area
to be dewatered and this work had
not been completed when Appendix IT
was prepared. My hon. friend Shri
Abid Al said that double addition
has been made, ‘These Ywo doubie
additions had been made and the
pumber hag increased Appendix
0O-A showed six additiona] bodies and
also since 1t covered the jpining
gallernies, certain other corpses which
were also included in Appendix II

A study of the two plans in ques-
tion will show that there can be no
possible doubt and the total number
of casualties iz therefore arnved at
as follows

As shown 1 Appendix II—
Dead bodies with skulls—158

Dead bodies more or less com.
plete except for the skulls—8

Additions shown n Appendix II-A—
Dead bodies with skulls—6

Those who died on the surface—
S

One body reported on 7Tth August,
1958—1

Total works to 178

As regards attendance register and
lamp register, what alternative we
had but to accept the joint register for
ouf enquiry® What could we do°
We were told that when this mine was
mechanised, they built a big room 1
which the lamps were kept. That s
called the lamp room. Théy did not
construct another attendance soom
The register that was kept wed kept In
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Form C, that is the Attendance register
in which the names were entered and
also the lamps were entered. Does
it interfere with ocur enguiry? It
may be that the Government has to
see or the department has to see whe-
ther such a house should be built for
both the purposes and a register should
be kept for both purposes. That is
the look-out of the Government. We
the Court of Enquiry went to find
out the real number of those people
who were engaged in work. And to
find out, i we did not find any other
register, we have to take that. We
took it

While we visited the mine, we also
found that there was another thing.
The lamp 1s kept on a hook When it
is returned, the worker has to note
the token number. How manv lamps
were taken, and which numbers were
taken, would all be recorded. We
eannot say that there is no attendance
register. We have to accept it as an
attendance register, in order to find
out the number of persons who went
in and the number of persons who
died.

Then, Sir, the workers’ represen-
tatives were not allowed to go down.
It is true that this was decided in the
Court. I8 was decided in the Court
that one observer from the Court
should be placed while dewatering
work will be going on. But due to
lack of unanimity, the workers’ re-
presentative could not be placed That
was the position. I wanted to know
whether the Court has jurisdiction,
and whether the Court can appoint
and it was said that the Court cammot
sppoint. It may be wrong; it may
be true; but that was the fact. I
wanted to know why the management
should not be given the highest
punishment. The mine can even be

i

Unfortunately or fortunately, stone
dusting dafects were found by the
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reported that it was rectiied In this
way there was no occasion to punish

the management for this defect as it
was localised.

My bon friends are doubtful abous
the cause of igrnution  This has been
dealt with very elaborately. I may
add that so far as our intelligence
goes, so far as our circumstantial evi-
dence goes, we took all things into
consideration and eliminated certain
things; but we could not eliminate
two of the causes. Those might be
the possible reasons or causes. And
for these we could not make anybody
responsible Government are there,
and the Mines Department are there,
and they will see the faults that have
been mentioned by the court of in-

quiry in their report, and they may
take steps for the future.

I have nothing more to add. These

were the things that arose in my
wmind.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Now, the hon.
Minster

Shri Tangamani: I want only five
minutes

Mr Deputy-Spesker: Would it be
possible now, after we have taken

already about an  hpur and fo;
minutes i

Shri Tangamani: I want only five
minutes.

Shri T. B. Vittal Rao (Khammam):
There are just one or two points that
T would like to mention I shall take
only five minutes.

The Minister of Labour and Em-

ployment and Planning (Shri Nlndn)'
Mr. Deputy-Speaker, Sir,...

Mr. Depaty-Speaker: After the hon.
Minuster has spoken, I shall allow
the hon. Member to ask a question or
two.

8bri T. B. Vittal Rae: No, I wanted
to speak. I did not want to pud any
Questions
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Shri : There gre certain
points only that 1 would Jike to men~
tion. I would not even refer to the

report.

Myr. Deputy-Speaker: What can I
do? Hon. Members would realise....

Shri Tangamani: This can be ex-
tended. You have got powsrs to ex-
tend it by half an hour.

Mr. Doputy-Speaker: In exercise of
that power, I have extended the time.
Now we shall be discussing this motion
for about 2} hours, because the hon.
Minister requires 40 minutes and then
at least five minutes should be given
to the hon. Mover.

Skri Nanda: I am in complete agree.
ment with the hon. Mover of this
motion that this was one of the most
disastrous occurrences in the mining
history of this country. It took a very
heavy toll of life, and, therefore, it
came to us as a challenge. We could
not, of course, restore to life all those
who had perished, but certainly we
owed it to their families and to the
working class generally that we
should try to discover whether there
was any culpable negligence involved
in it, and if there was, then those
responsible and those answerable
should be brought to book and
punished.

Secondly, we also owed it to the
working class that all possible steps
may be taken so that recurrence of
such accidents may be avoided so far
as it is humanly possible. That was
why we appointed this court of enqu-
iry and chose a judge of the High
Court of Bengal for this purpose.

And we had this report. In the
normal course, we should take action
fn pursuance of the findings and
recommendations of thig court. When
1 was asked that there should be some
discussion of this here in the House,
we might have felt, or we might have
faken the stand “that here is a court
of inquiry with assessors, a Member
of Parliament and a very eminent

on that?’. Further, the la

make any provision for a

which has been asked for. On that
ground 1 might have just disposed of
this matter saying that this iy a suffi-
cient answer. But I did not choose tha
line, I reckoned with the strong feel-
ings which were being expressed, and
the excitement which I noticed, and I
thought it was my duty to look into
the matter. If these feelings and this
resentment and this bitterness were
based on some misapprehensions, then
I should try to clear those misappre-
hensions. If, on the other hand, I
could find that there was some glaring
miscarr ege of justice, then whatever
the law says or does not say, there is
some obligation to do something about
it. That was the attitude which 1
adopted. It cast on me a very onerous
and heavy task.

1 went through this report from end
to end. You will see it marked in
places with red and blue and all that. 1
read every page of it and every word
of it from end to end. I read every
word of this book of allegations. I
redd parts of the evidence also, and
as I went into it more and more, and
as I delved into these questions more
and more, I found that I wanted to
know more. When I read those alle-
gations, I found in certain respects
there must be something wrong. That
was my reaction, as it would be of
any person who reads those allega-
tions. Then when I went into it I
tried more and more to unravel those
entangled points. Now I will not say
that all those allegationg are baseless.
Some of them, in the light of the facts
which have been revealed, will be
found to be incorrect. Some of them,
may be, are to an extent correct
What are the implications.
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very necessary for me to have done
that. It was not necessary, but I do
not regret it because I have received
some education in thizs whole matter
of the mining industry and of the
question of the safety problems with
which I am concerned, ‘and therefore
I do not regret it. I am glad. But,
what is the bearing of all this?

[ ]

Allegations are made. If it is about
the Chief Inspector, if it is about the
Inspectorate, if it ig about some letter
written by some one to Shri Abid Ali,
all these things are relevant; if they
bhave anything to do with, but the
Question at issue is. The task before
the court was to find out the cause of
this accident, whether it was due to
some misadventure, some circumstances
beyond the control of the management
or anybody, or whether there was an
amount of responsibility, some negli-
gence somewhere. This was the ques.
tion, that is whether those deaths
could have been prevented by any
human intervention, or action, or
whether we could do nothing about
it? That was the main question.

So far as I am able to judge now,
having listened to everything, not a
single point has been raised which has
a bearing on that. I can say that
because I have gone very deep into
this matter. Other things have been
raised, very important allegations
sgainst the management, about viola-
tions. The things which have been
cited here are not new. They have
been also mentioned by the court too.
They have been mentioned on page
54, and more than what the hon.
Mover has said here more than any-
body, has said, The shortcomings
pointed out are more numerous, for
instance, something about the per-
functoriness of the registers, and the
entries. Then it says something about
proper steps not always being taken
in time to dilute the gas sufficiently by
extending brattices or removing the
same wherever necessary. Then there
i this, question et the loco for
example,
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The question now before me is:
these things are there, these things
which were pointed out in this book
and in the notes which I received from
some Hon. Members. Because of the
limitation of t.me, possibly the hoa.
Mover could not say al} the things
stated here, but I have kept them all
in mind, every little thing that has
been entered here, recorded here. 1
find that the court has, without any
kind of consideration, any softness,
mentioned all that, and put it in these
pages—all that has to be said against
the management.

Then the question for us is: what is
to be done about it? The first and
most important question is: to what
extent these things have a bearing on
the accident? For example, there was
the question in regard to the register.
Has it any bearing on the casualties,
the outcome, the number of deaths? I
may deal with this immediately. So
much time has been taken on that. It
is an important matter—even a zingle
death. But what are we really driv-
ing at? The register was not main-
tamned. All right. That was a viola~
tion. If there was any violation
involved, it is our duty to look into
it, and 1 promise the House that all
these things will be looked into. They
will be exam'ned and investigated, and
it any action is due against the
management, it will be taken.

Shri Tangamani: Amongst the wit~
nesses, there wag one who was work-
ing in the pit. Subsequently he was
rescued. In his evidence, there is a
reference to one matter. It iz said:

“Jiblal came to us and told us
that there was gas detected at
zero dip. The contractor’s men
have refused to work and they
have been sent to the surface”™.

N

Shrl Nanda: I remember all that

Hon. Members may not have spent a8

much time as ] have devoted to the
subject.
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Now, I shall deal with those matters
which have apparently at least 2 bear-
ing on the outcome. And this matter
has. Take the inspection reports
which I have and which have been
mentioned here. Numerous inspection
reports point out that while there was
concentration of gas, that the regula-
tions were not being fully observed.
People were withdrawn. All that is
true. I am coming to the core of the
problem. Here the Court had to see
this, how far violations and the
breaches, were they linked up with
this.

I have learnt now, and it iz clear
to me, a3 to what is happening there
in these mines and what happened
then. The inspector goes. It is his
duty to look at everything. At any
rate, whatever else, you may say
aguinst the inspectorate, you will at
jeast acknowledge this, that they did
not spare this mine, that they pointed
out every little thing that happened.
Take violations. Numerous records
are there. Now, what is the signi-
ficance of that? The simple answer is
that the inspectors found that a certain
oconcentration of gas was being exceed-
ed. What was it that was being
exceeded? That is recorded. 1 per
cent 1.5 per cent, 2 per cent and 25
per cent. Now if you study the scien-
tific aspects of it, it will be clear to
you that the concentration of methane
gas, which is usually involved in these
explosions, has to be at least 5 per
eent before it can have any explosive
effect. So abundant precautions were
taken. Usually it may be about one
per cent. Therefore, the workers were
withdrawn. That means that some-
body may say from the management
side “You people are harassing us.” 1
do not think that we will accept that
argument. We want to continue those
precautions. Before any point of
risk or danger is reached, we act;
before that we withdraw people.’

This is the position with regard to
the methane gas. There was an out-
burst. It was found. It is not denied
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by anybody. On that there is unani-
mity. Even the gentieman, the witness,
who may have helped in preparing
this book, ultimately acknowledged,
that there had been methane gas; but
this is explosive only within a range
of between 5 and 14 per cent.

Therefore, if there are any violae
tions, let ug look into them. But the
whole question is: what had they to
do with thig particular matter before
the court? It had not. My main
answer rests on that., So far as these
violations on the part of the manage-
ment are concerned, we will look into
them independently on their merits,
and also see that these registers are
kept properly.

19 hrs.

I have had a look at the registers
also and I was not satisfled. 1 saw all
the entries; I saw all the original
records and I am not satisfed. I do
not know what the explanation is
going to be. But, a3 I said, they
should have some bearing on the ques-
tion of the number of deaths.

There is a kind of misunderstanding
here. 1 have before me the usual
number of persons on the various days
and months—in the shifts. The num-
ber goes down between first shift,
second shift and the third shift. There
18 also the C.R.O.'s part. There
is a separate number. For the first
shift, the numbers are 245, 259, 2686.
And for the second, they are 117, 129
and 115 ete.

Now, that is the basic fact. There
used to be a difference between the
first shift and the second and the
second and the third shift. In these
allegationg the words that there was
a negligible difference has been mis-
construed. From that the conclusion
is drawn that if there were 218, 248
or 260 in the first shift, and since there
was negligible difference, it should be
very nearly 2350 or 260, plus C.R.O.
another 65.
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Shrimati Benu OCbhakravarity: Three
hundred and ten was the number in
the first shift. \ .

Shri Nanda: The real fhung 1s this
The second relay stands by itself. The
person who said that there was negli-
gible difference had in mind, obvious-
ly, that in the numbers in the second
shuft, from day to day, there was
neghgible difference, and not that
there was negligible difference bet-
ween the first shift and the second
shift and the second shift and the third
shift. I have looked into it very care-
fully It may be I cannot vouch for
the number 176; and I think I am in
no position to say anything about it
yet. The court acted in certain cir-
cumstances, and under certain himita-
tions. My hon. friend Shri Samanta
bas pointed out the inherent dufficul-
ties etc.

But my point 13 that to say that it
was a mmnimum of 115 when the
skulls were 30 many more is not
understandable. Whatever the number
was—it came to nearly 175—to say
that it was a minimum of 115 must be
some kind of arithmetical accuracy so
far as the various stages of calcula-
tion are concerned.

I may inform the hon, Members that
I went there the next day and I got
the number within 43 minutes all the
registers of the mine were m the hands
of the department. (Interruption).
Everything was noted and there was
no question of any change. I was
given that number. After calculations
1t was reported to me—it may be just
one or two more or less. Therefore,
the question of later verification could
not have altered the thing very much.

Shrimati Benu Chakravartty: It was
172 and in the Statesman it was given
that it had risen to 188.

Shrt Nanda: From 178 it may be
188. What is the point? The point is
that so far as the management is
toncerned, 1 do not think this alters
the position very much whether it is
118 or 188. But it does alter the posi-
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tion for the members of the families
of these 10 people who were not found.

Therefore, our object should be to
see if anywhere the families of these
people are there; 1if there are 2, 3 or
4, they should be traced and we may
help The numbers could not be very
much larger There may be a marginal
difference.

There was another fact.

Shri Tavgamani: I would lke to
know whether at least now the Min-
istry has got the names of those 178
workers

Shri Abid Ali: We have got it.

Shri Nanda: We have got it from
the beginning There may be the
difficulties about registers. 1 say there
may be some marginal differences.
Why don’t they come for compensa-
tion? That was the question asked.
The counter-question or the explana-
tion 1s that so many of them ere
1ignorant and illiterate people. Thus is
a matter worth looking nto. I made
a research into the past enquiries and
tried to find out the number of those
who did not ask for compensation.
There also the C.R.O. and Gorekhpur
labour was involved. Incidentally, I
may say about this C.RO. and Gorakh.
pur labour that I did not Lke the
position as 1t 1s and in the industrial
committee on coal I have said that
something should be done. Something
has to be done. What could be done
has to be looked into. 1 find that there
was a margin of 2-3 persons There-
fore, 1t all comes to this Wath all the
very meticulous research m numbers
I wnll ask whether anyone can give the
absolute figure? Can one say that it
18 176 and not 177 I do not think
anybody can say. Is that of that
importance for the purpose of our dis-
cussion, because our discussion is that
there should be a re-enquirv and I am
going to take that up? There are
difficulties here and there Why is it
that there should be re-enquiry? That
18 the question One point made was
that the court did not reach any con-
clusion That is quite wrong. The
court has recerded a very definite



probability. Then there is the remote
possibility of something else happen-
ing. Then there are a third set of
conclusions where one thing may be
more likely than the other. The alter-
natives are stated and the things are
left at that. This is a scientific and
judicial approach. What does the
totality of that evidence lead to?
‘They have stated things as they saw
them and understood them. They have
expressed their conclusions in these
terms. Do we want our courts to say
this? If a murder takes place and
if they could not find necessarily
liable to be sentenced for that, should
they find, in order that the require-
wment of a definite conclusion has to
be satisfled, somebody else liable?
Here it was a baffling technical and
scientific problem. Part of the evi-
dence is obliterated by fire, etc
Taking all that was there into account,
this was the conclusion. I have also
gone into the evidence of another
witness who put up a rival case.
But he himself has said very clearly
that his own conclusions to a great
extent will have to be tentative. The
accident might have been due to me
than gas though earlier the position
was that it could not have been
methane but it was directly due to
coal dust. But later on the position
had to be accepted by the weight of
evidence that was put. Therefore,
I am saying that so far as this ques-
tion of the demand for a re-enquiry
is concerned, apart from the techni-
cal aspects of it, one reason does not
apply. All that can be done has
been done. Supposing you ask me
to evaluate all that and sit in judg-
ment by way of an appellate court,
what would I do? I am not, of
course, that. But I will say, having
very very tharoughly examined every-
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thing, I may not be necessarily abie
to agree with every little bit of
conclusion here and there. It may
be that I might heve accepted some
other alternative explanation. But,
taking the thing as a‘ whole, would
I be in a position to say that this
should be rejected in favour of some-
thing else which evidence reveals as
more probable, or say that there is
evidence which has been neglectod
and therefore possibly something else
could have been found? Sir, 1 will
state very positively, 1 am not in that
position to say. I won't be able to
say that something else was more
probable then what the court jtself
has said. On the other hand, I think,
considering all the evidence, it appear-
ed to me that the conclusions of the
court flowed from that. There may
be some aspects which are obscure to
me also. I do not know everything
about science and the technical aspects,
and it may be also that there was that
inherent obscurity in that. Therefore,
I will not be able to do that.

Then, Sir, there are some other
things which have a bearing on this
question. A doubt may be cast on the
inquiry taking ome little fact. The
question is whether better conclusion
1s possible in the circumstances. I do
not think so, m spite of the fact, as
1 said before, that I am attaching a
very great weight to numbers of things
which have been pointed out here
regarding which we will have to do
something more.

What else is there to challenge
the judgment of the court? Some
things were pointed out eg an
exploder being found somewhere else
rather than in a place which was
pointed out earlier.

Shrimat! Renn Chakeavarity: That
was 16 Dip. .
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and then exposing themselves to all
these?

Sheimail Renu Chakravarity: Al-
ready the court had wanted to know
the difference Dbetween the lamp
register figures and figure of dead
aamitted by management.

Shri Nanda: If anything could
have been consumed and destroyed in
the explosion, that was an easy ex-
planation for anything that might
have happened. 1 do not want to go
into the details because it may take
hours for me to give all the details.
With my limited knowledge of these
things I only walht to explain all that
is involved in the rival theories and
say what is more probable.

I have one or two facts to which
I give a great deal of importance. A
workers’' representative Mr. Lyndon
James, from the United Kingdom has
given some reports. He was not in-
terested. I read his reports very
carefully. He has made out very
clearly what he thinks of the chain
of causation, I place a great reliance
on him and his evidence. Here is a
disinterested person who is speaking
for the workers. That is one fact.

it at a much lower concentration
at the place where the damage is
done. At this place the people were
present and they would have with-
drawn the workers long, long ago if
they bhad the slightest suspicion of
that fact. It is a very important fact
for me, because I thought that they
would not endanger themselves. They
had the knowledge and the compe-
tence, and I would suppose they had
some love for their lives, They did
not want to die.

These are some of the things where,
after an evolution in my mind 1
thought some further probing into
certain aspects of the matter might
be required. But so far as the En-
quiry Committee's report is concermn-
ed, whatever the limitations which
are acknowledged, I do not think
the question arises at all that there
should be a re-enquiry. I have read
through the recommendations and 1
find that they have made Xome very
valuable recommendations for the
future. We are in this country going
to mine more and more coal from
year to year and we are going to
mine deeper below the ground. The
mines will become deeper the opera-
tions will be mechanised. There is
the problem of gassy mines. I think
we have to do much more research
because there are many problems re-
lating to our special conditions which
might not have been looked into else-
where. Therefore, the problem of
greater research is important, and
several other recommendations made
in the report must be looked into and
examined. We propose to do that.

There were one or two other
points about the procedure of the
court. There was a neutral observer.
For the first time such a practice was
adopted. It was done by agreement
and all the parties said there should
be a neutral observer for all. They
did not allow the workers' repre-
sentative. I do not know whether
there was disagreement on the
workers’ side. Personnlly I am not
quite happy about the position. I do
not mean to cast any refiection on the
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court, but I do not feel happy about it.
Why should not a workers’ representa-
tive be there? The court first recom-
mended or accepted that, and later on
the mine management said that their
property rights and all that. I do not
see any point about that. But if
need be this should be incorporated
in the law—that their representative
should be allowed to come inside
every time. But there it is. We
cannot do anything about it now at
this stage.

I have spoken about the future. It
is our duty to see that we do every-
thing possible to safeguard the lives
of those people. There is only one
thing about the Mining Department to
which I want to refer. The manage-
ment, the inspectorate, etc., were
referred to, and so much wrath was
poured on the heads of those people.
It is taking us away from our subject.
Even if nobody had said it here, if
they had written to me a line at least
about it that something required
examination, I would have done it,
because I want naturally to see that
the department functions properly. It
is the department which has to deli-
ver the goods. Also, half the num-
ber of places is not yet filled. I am
very sorry about it. I am beating my
head against the walls: why is it that
we have not got half the number of
the staff there on the posts? They do
not come. Maybe we should do
something about it, but there it is.
They have a difficult task. Judging
from this, I may say that they have
been performing their task well
enough. They did inspect all right
I may also inform the House that in
the same company, in the other mines
the mines were closed. down only a
little while earlier, i.e. the treatment
of this company was strict. Therefore,
no favour was shown to this company
because another mine of the same
company was treated in this very
stringent manner.

Mr., Grewal's name has been men-
tioned. I do not know whether it
was reslly proper. But if there is
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anything from any member of our
department, any irregularity of a kind
which renders him unfit to hold this
responsible position, it is our respon-
sibility to look into that. But to
demand the head of a person, etc.—
that is not the kind of spirit I appre-
ciate. 1f anyone has done something
which calls for some action, let us
leok into it. But let us not presume
it. Why do we presume that some
duty or something has not been done?
Why do we pass a sentence without
an enquiry? I am prepared to look
into any material that any Member
can provide against any member of
the staff. But let us not pass judg-
ment before any enquiry at all.

The hon. Member said that he
received a letter that the Chief
Inspector of Mines has become a
member of some kind of association.
It may be some other Grewal, Sir,
because I have enquired and I am
told that he is not a member of that

association; he was never a member.
’

Shri 8. M. Banerjee: I have the
proceeding here.

Shri Nanda: It may be wrong.
This illustrates the danger of our
allowing ourselves to be guided by
even things which look like very
genuine; what about rumours, etc?
Other things have also been stated and
heard about that poor gentleman. If
he is not innocent, certainly he
should suffer. I cannot prejudge; I
hope my mind is open.

I think I have dealt with many
points raised. My reply ultimately
is that we zhall certainly deal with
those irregularities about attendance
register and other matters which in
the ordinary course are our respon-
sibility to deal with. But so
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for a re-enquiry, which 18 the object
of the motion. Sir, I have done

Shri Aurcdindo Ghosal (Uluberia):
May 1 know whether the causes of
igmtion—diesel loco, o1l lamp, etc —
were put forward by the company or
by one of the officers?

Shri Tangamani: In the course of
the report, I found out that whenever
there is reference to the workers, 1t
is made in very disparaging terms
But whenever some reference- is
made to the management, even on
the question of non-maintenance of
registers, etc, encomiums are paid
Has the hon Minister got to say any-
thing about that? I can givé many
instances

Shri Nanda: I will have to say
something about that I do not like
such things Maybe somebody might
have talked 1n a certain way which
might have provoked the judge As
a trade unionist, certainly I would
not like such a thing at all

An Hen. Member: It 13 after all a
commussion of enquiry

Shri Nanda: The other thing was
sbout ignmition That has been a
vexed point—the source of ignition.
The Member who has asked this
question will notice 1n the report it-
self that all do not agree about the
source of ignition, there 1s a pomt of
disagreement there Even the court
itself 1s not able to make up i1t mind
even till the last moment, whether
it was the loco, some kind of inlet
trap, etc being removed or not
being there and therefore some flame
coming out of it or whether it was
due to a smouldering cloth being
pushed into the lens, etc The court
has not been able to make up ts
mund. That 1s, there was not enough
material to arnve definitely at one
conclusion or another It was at a
very late stage that this loco arose.
The sources of igmtion can be w0
many; same have been excluded, but
still some remain Some of the con-
ditlons suggested by some friends, on
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closer examination, are found to be
really presenting a probability These
things look to be probable BRut I
am not quite sure

Shrimati Rean Chakravartity:
Naturally I will not be able to deal
at length, but I have got to refer to
every pomt that has been answered
by the hon Minister 1 am surprised
that he has made a short shrift of
all the points that have been raised
and nothing hag been rephed to

Firstly, I will take up the main
pomt that has been made, namely,
whether we can at all reject the find-
ings of a court of mqury My legal
friends frighten non-legal people lke
me by saying that it 1s not possible for
us to do and the only alternative was
that during the enquiry we could
have raised something m the Supreme
Court. I will not go into that. But
I want to refer to one thing When
the Mehboobnagar Enquiry Committe
report was submitted on the termble
train accident s¢ Mehboobnagar, and
it was presided over by a Judge of
the Bombay High Court. holding, 1
think, the railway engineers respon-
sible for it, the findings have been
rejected by the Government

Shri Nanda: 1 did not take that
stand I said I will look into that

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: If he had
taken the view of the spesaker, he
could not have allowed this discus-
sion at all

Shrimati Renu Chakravartty:
There was qute a feeling created
that because this is

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: We have heard

that view We have discussed it
threadbare
Shrimati Renu Chakravartty:

The point 18 that Government can-
not reject the report That is my
point.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: No, no It
the Government appoimnts a court of
mquiry and that court makes u re-
commendation, 1t is for the Govern-
ment to accept it, to reject it or to
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wanted to make,

The other point which shocked me
most was the entire violation, not
one violation but viclation after
violation, whether it is on stone-
dusting, whether it is on short-firing,
whether it is on explosives qr the
attendance register. In almost every-
one of them viclations have taken
place. Why is it that you conclude,
or anybody else conclude, that this
did not take place because of the
violation but because probably of the
metalling gas case or some such
thing? There is a probability. But
why is it that we have not taken
seriously the violations that have
taken place? It may be that this has
happened because of those violations
also.

Shri Nanda: She did not make

any specific points so that I could
answer them.,
Shrimati Rens Ohakravartty:

Surely, I have referred to coal dust-
ing, stome-dusting and all those
‘things.

Shri Nanda: Coal dust is not pecu-
liar to any particular mine.

. Shrimati Renu Chakrayartty:
But coal dust is one of the biggest
sources of explosion. That is the
‘point.

Then again, about the Neutral Ob-
server about whom the hon. Minis-
ter has also referred to, aimost every
report made by this poor gentleman
‘who hag been made a Neutral Scien-
gific Observer has been rejected by
the court. Therefore, everything
that this scientific man is supposed to
say is rejected and everything that
the management says is accepted by
the court.

Shri Nanda: That also is not
correct. The material points made
by him were not rejected. There
were one or two points made by the
Neutral Observer ahout the question

A,mz.m

served something from outside. It is
only on that point that his finding wes
rejected.

Shrimati Renu Chakravartly:

That is not so. What about his find-
ing on 18 Dip rise?

Shri Nandia: Anyhow, that is my
understanding.

shert firing, coal dusting and so om.
Then the Neutral Observer had stated
that some smashed caps were foumd
there. So Mr. Badami says that
because of short firing the explosion
might ‘have taken place and the par-
ticular smashed cap also confirms
that. But that is being refuted by
the court by saying “Mr. Badami
must have said by hearsay”, although
Mr. Badami has gone there and seen
everything himself. Still, that is not
being accepted. Therefore, after all,
it is not such 8 simple case. There
was not one violation or two viola-
tions but 20-30 violations.

The Howrah Colliery dismster took
place on the same day. A court of
inquiry was held. Probably much
lesser violations were noticed there.
Still, 1t is clearly and categorically
stated by the court of inquiry that
the mine management must be heid
responsible for that. No such thing
is done here. Why? Is it not possi-
ble for the court of inguiry to say
“yes, this is a very complicated case
where melting gas case, short firing
and coal dusting are involved. This
explosion has taken place because of
violation of ruleg for which the
management has to be held responsi-
ble”? But that is not done at all.

Regarding the Inspectorste, I am
afraid; the hon. Minister has tried to
whitewash it. He said if anything
has rendered anybody umnfit that can
be looked into and 20 on. 1 have not
said anything personal -ahmtui
mummeam Inspector ” of

Minds. I do not kmow Mm
at’ all. He might have made certain
personal Temarks wbout me. But
1 do not mind it «ll. But what
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I want to say is that even {from
the ordinary human pomt of view .
when it is the Chiet Jnspector of
Mines who goes and stands on the pit
top even up to the point of sealing
and he does not fake the trouble of
going down that mine when there are
other people going down that mine,
I say that that renders him unfit
and that he should certainly be
discharged on that one ground
when so0 many people have died
I cannot jimagine that if I am
at the head of an educational inst-
tution and fire takes place I stand
outside and look at other people going
and rescuing and 1, as the head of
the institution. do not take the risk
of my life 1 cannot understand
that,

I do not go mnto anything else,
whether he 18 n the owners
association or anything 1 have no
idea about thatt That can be
enquired into But certainly that one
basic fact, 1n my eyes, him
responsible for much of the mustakes
that are taking place in the Mines
Department That 1s why 1 say that
these Inspectorate officers, some of
them good and conscientious—I never
said all the Inspectorate are to blame
—even when they are sending notices
to say that these and these and these
are the rules that are being violated,
the Chief Inspector of Mines
ignores them blatantly He knows
that the Regional Inspector of Mines
has been sending these chits. But
according to the rules it is the Chiet
Inspector who huas to tak- a decision
Nothing comes back from the Chief
Inspector. Why? That is why we

be trying very hard. But if the top
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violations—and there have been so
many violations; they have gone on
from year to year--just to say that

when we pointéd it out to the
management this was put right 1s not
enough.

My hon. fmend, Shm Samanta has
tried to make out a case that as soon
as we pointed out everything is put
right. But in a gassy mine what 18
the use of having a post mortem
when one mistake can kil so many
people So, this question of putting
right or not putting right 1s another
post mortem affaxr My pomt is that
these things cannot be treated so
hghtly. Violations are very serious
things Either scrap our mine laws—
let us not have these safety regula-
tions—or let us be serious about them.
Even if we do not want to go into
research—we should go into research;
I am all for it, but what 1s the use
of research if you cannot implement
even your sumple safety laws and your
inspectors cannot implement those?
That 1s my pomnt

Lastly—obviously you are looking
at the watch very anxiously—I bad
many more things to say, but I would
lke just to say...

Mr  Deputy-Spesker: She has
judged me nghtly.

Shrimati Renu Chakravarity:
I would have hiked to answer point by
pownt but I have not the time

About the question of the three chiet
supervisory staff found together and
the idea that at that point there was
a sudden outburst of gasness—I think
that is a pomt which may sound very
strange to the hon Mnister, but to
my mind I think we cannot come to
any conclusion on that There 1s com-
plication to find out where and how
things heve happened. But we do
not come to a superfiaal conclusion.
Therefore I say that this 18 a question
of violation-~very serious violationg—
and much less violations have brought
about much stronger strictures from
other courts of enquiry. You see the
Amiabed Court of Enquiry and the
way things have been done over
there and see this Court of Enquiry.
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About the figures my hon. friend,
Shri Abid Ali, tried to say that there
was duplication. I have been looking
into this. If you go Dip by Dip,
surely for UP and Bengal and Bengal
and Assam this duplication and this
comparison does not arise because
you will go Dip by Dip. If you cal-
culate on that basis and if he takes
the trouble, I think he will find that
it will not be 175 or 178. This is
-where I say that we are not trying to
make up the thing. We are just cal-
culating on the basis of things that
have been given to us by the court
itself and that is why we challenge
the total figure of dead given by the
court as incorrect.

Shri Abid Ali: Where are their re-
lations?

Shrimati Renu Chakravartty:
I am just telling you what is there
in the Report.

Shri S. M. Banerjee: Produce the
Teport.

Shrimati Renu Chakravartty:
You are making such a big....

Shri Abid Ali: He is asking us to
produce the Report.

Shrimati Rena Chakravartty:
“Then also the other appendix to the
Report—those are not sectional re-

Mr Deputy-Speaker: Order, order.
He need not produce it

Shrimati Renu Chakravartty:
It is all one report. Therefore on the
basis of the Report itself, the figures
are not correct, violations are clearly
stated to have tsken place and yet
the responsibility s not put upon
the management and the Department
of Mines. There seems to be a serious
‘breach of their work.

Lsstly, I am glad that the Minister
has said that he is not happy about the
way the Court of Enquiry has taken
apon itself, quite outside its purview
And terms of reference to talk of what
politiclans have done and politicians
will be, appealing to their lowest in-
stincts and all that sort of thing. On
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the other hand, he goes out of his
way to compliment the management.
He udmits that all these violations
have taken place. He himself says:
We are not legal brains; we are simple
people. Sometimes we wonder how
people, after saying that these viola-
tions have taken place, then say that
this company's officers, after having
met with them, he finds that they are
a fine band of people and he has no
doubt that they have got many more
such fine officers. He goes out of his
way to pay compliments there. On
the other hand, for others, he says,
“trade unionism harnessed to politics
tends to produce its opposite, namely,
“trade-disunionism”, *....indiscipline
amongst the workers of this mine”.
All this he says while admitting and
it does not come within “the scope of
our inquiry”.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: All that, the
hon. Minister has said.

Shrimatt Rena Chakravartty:
I do plead that there is a good case
for re-enquiry. It should not stand as
a matter of prestige with the Govern-
ment, I do not think they have made
out a case. But, certainly I would
only appeal that if he even takes up
violation after violation and punishes
the management even on the basis of
the violations, I sav that that com-
pany will have to answer a lot of
things and the Inspectorate too, for
their negligence, especially the Chief
Inspector of Mines.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: May I know
from Shri Vajpayee if I have to put
that amendment to the House?

Shrimatt Renu Chakravarity:
Yes. 1 will accept the amendment.

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: I have not
got an answer.

Shri Vajpayee: There is no quorum
now.

Some Hon. Mombers: Don't raise it
now.
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Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Then, he
withdraws with the permission of the
House,

The amendment was, by leave, with-
drawn,

Mr. Deputy-Speaker: Then there is

nothing that I have to put to the
House.

16 (Ai) LSD—10.

CHAITRA 12, 1881 (SAKA) Chinakuri Colliery 0488
D

isaster

The House stands adjourned ¢ill 11
o'clock, tomorrow.

19.39 hrs,

The Lok Sabha then adjourned till
Eleven of the Clock on Friday April 8,
1959/Chastra 13, 1881 (Saks).





